
1 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9

STUDY SESSION AGENDA: Tuesday, August 20, 2019, 6:15pm
Gig Harbor Civic Center Council Chambers (3510 Grandview St., Gig Harbor, WA 98335)

Call to Order ___:___

Commissioner Roll Call:
Present Excused Comment

Maryellen (Missy) Hill
Amanda Babich
Todd Iverson
Kurt Grimmer

Steve Nixon

ITEM 1 Approval of Agenda

ITEM 2 Board Discussion

2.a Review of the Policy Manual

ITEM 3 Adjournment ___:___

AGENDA POLICY

 No comments or discussion will be allowed on consent items.
 Public comment will be allowed on each Regular Agenda Action Item. Each speaker will be

limited to a three (3) minute time limit and may only speak once with a total of 15 minutes per
side. Comments will be included as part of the official record of the meeting.

 Citizen Comments: Citizens are afforded an opportunity at each regular and special meeting
of the Board of Park Commissioners to offer their comments to the Board. Citizens are limited
to a three (3) minute time limit and may only speak once during the Citizen Comment period
at each meeting. Comments will be included as part of the official record of the meeting.

 Individuals requesting an item to be placed on the agenda must submit a request by 12 noon
on the Tuesday preceding the Monday meeting date.

 Individuals wishing to submit materials or written testimony to the Board at the meeting must
provide ten (10) copies at least 15 minutes prior to the start of the meeting.

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District
PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org

www.penmetparks.org



2 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9

DISTRICT COMMISSION MEMO

To: Peninsula Metropolitan Park District Board of Commissioners

From: Glenn Akramoff, Interim Executive Director

Date: August 20, 2019

Subject: Policy Manual Review

Background/Analysis

As the review of key elements of PenMet operations continue the next item is to review the
current Policy Manual. The Commission has areas that have been identified as concerns or items
to be addressed. The staff team also have parts of the manual that are identified for improvement.

The Study Session will review the policy manual section by section and identify areas to be
updated or reorganized. The first focus will be to reorganize the document to be more easily
searchable. This will also include making the manual readily available in electronic form to all
the staff and Commissioners.

Timeline and Funding

The process of updating the manual per the direction of the Commission and the request of

staff will begin in August and continue through the end of the year. There are some polices that

will require board approval, legal review and review by the district’s insurance company. While

there is no major cost expected, there may be few small consultant contracts that are needed

to complete some of the policy re-creation and review. The Board reviewed the manual

through Section of Park Regulations, and will continue to review the Policy Manual in upcoming

Study Sessions to review the administrative procedure sections.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Board of Commissioners discuss the policy manual and provide

direction for changes and updates. It is further recommended that the Commissioners consider

staff recommended changes and direct the update process to begin.

Policy Implications/Support

1. Provide a well-organized and updated Policy Manual
2. Highlight changes and updates to be completed by the end of 2019
3. Commissioner discussion on updated Policy implications
Staff Contact

Should you have any questions or comments please contact Glenn Akramoff at the earliest

opportunity should additional research be required to provide answers at the meeting: 253-

858-3408 or via e-mail at gakramoff@PenMetParks.org.



3 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA: Tuesday, August 20, 2019, 7:15pm
Gig Harbor Civic Center Council Chambers (3510 Grandview St., Gig Harbor, WA 98335)

Call to Order ___:___

Commissioner Roll Call: STAFF:
Present Excused Comment

Maryellen (Missy) Hill
Amanda Babich
Todd Iverson
Kurt Grimmer

Steve Nixon

ITEM 1 Approval of Agenda
ITEM 2 Citizen Comments (three-minute time limit)

ITEM 3 Presentations
3.a Women’s Wellness Exposition Debrief
3.b Website update
3.c Recreation Scholarships
3.d Executive Director Report (pages 5-9)

Long Range Calendar

3.e Financial Report
3.f President’s Report

ITEM 4 Consent Agenda
4.a Approval of Meeting Minutes

8-6-19 Regular and Study Session (pages 14-16)

4.b Approval of Vouchers
 $306,645.71  Reference numbers: V2019381- V2019417 (pages 17-20)

4.c Approval of Consent Agenda

ITEM 5 Old Business
5.a Community Center Funding
5.b Senior Center MOU

ITEM 6 Comments by Board/Subcommittee Reports
6.a Community Center
6.b Marketing

6.c Fundraising—Under Development

ITEM 7 Next Board Meetings: Tues. September 17, 2019 (Regular and Study Session) at

new City Hall location 6:15pm

ITEM 8 Executive Session: real estate to be considered [RCW 42.30.110(1)(b)]

ITEM 9 Adjournment ___:___

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District
PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org

www.penmetparks.org



4 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9

AGENDA POLICY

 No comments or discussion will be allowed on consent items.
 Public comment will be allowed on each Regular Agenda Action Item. Each speaker will be

limited to a three (3) minute time limit and may only speak once with a total of 15 minutes per
side. Comments will be included as part of the official record of the meeting.

 Citizen Comments: Citizens are afforded an opportunity at each regular and special meeting
of the Board of Park Commissioners to offer their comments to the Board. Citizens are limited
to a three (3) minute time limit and may only speak once during the Citizen Comment period
at each meeting. Comments will be included as part of the official record of the meeting.

 Individuals requesting an item to be placed on the agenda must submit a request by 12 noon
on the Tuesday preceding the Monday meeting date.

 Individuals wishing to submit materials or written testimony to the Board at the meeting must
provide ten (10) copies at least 15 minutes prior to the start of the meeting.



5 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9

DEPARTMENT STAFF REPORT: August 7-August 20, 2019

EXECUTIVE

 The Salary Survey has kicked off. Elaine Sorenson has taken the lead o the project with MW

Management Consultants.

 The budget process is now in the Executive Director review phase. Each department is meeting

the Executive Director to answer questions and refine their budget.

 The team is preparing for the Hearing Examiner meeting for the Community Recreation Center

on August 21st. Work also includes drafting a plan for operations of the site should the purchase

be approved.

 Coordination of the Executive Director Search continues.

 Continue to coordinate with the school district on various issues.

 The Boys and Girls Club agreement is now resolved and completed.

Marketing

 Website migration is tracking public comment and input as received (search bar added, staff

contacts and information updated)

 Core Internet Team is being assembled (CIT) to mitigate all digital platforms and coordinate

communication

 Parks and Recreation Guide (16 page) including 12 moth event schedule, classes facilities and

park map completed

 Working with Special Populations to coordinate promotion

 Interview with TNT/Gateway to promote fall sports (ie soccer/flag football) specifically Health

and Wellness for Youth.

CAPITAL PROGRAM

 Pre-Meeting for hearing examiner

 Hearing Examiner meeting 8/21/2019 1pm Pierce County Annex Building

 Reviewing Hales Pass / Arletta Schoolhouse project.
PEG Grants in progress

 Eagle Scout projects for Bat houses at Hales Pass (approved, in progress)

 Rotary Bark Park trail map and signs (preparing grant for future meeting)

 Off Leash Area Obstacle Course (under review)

 Tubby’s small dog area shelter (preparing grant for future meeting)

 Narrows fencing (deferred to next project)

 Three scouts currently discussing projects

Volunteers

 Working with community service people at Narrows continues.

 PHS runners trimmed trails at McCormick Forest; GHHS to trim trails at Rotary Bark Park.

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District
PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org
www.penmetparks.org



6 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9

MAINTENANCE & FACILITIES

 Replaced slide at Sehmel Park in the playground

 Painted 7 soccer fields for 3v3 GHSC tournament

 Painted 5 soccer fields for TYEE cup

 Sprayed bees nests at all parks

 Helped Recreation camps run smoothly
RECREATION

 Camps are on their 2nd to last week. Camp Highlights this week are Wizarding World of

Hogwarts, Tooniversity Art Camp, Pacific Island Ballet Camp and a Salish Sea Scientists Camp put

on by Harbor Wild Watch.

 Fall Soccer Practices start Monday August 19th and currently have 240 Kids registered from 1st-

8th grade.

 Little kickers is FULL with 128 kids in the program and will start September 7th.

 Adult Softball just wrapped up the playoffs on Sunday August 11th with 15 teams from around

the community. Will look to expand our seasons in future years to offer more recreational

softball opportunities to the community.

 Kelly and Mike are working away at planning for Scarecrow Festival along with an all new

Monster Mash Bash around Halloween which we have partnered with Ocean 5 for and will hold

it at their facility.

 Mike is continuing to review applications for the Facility Coordinator position. Some very

qualified candidates and will start interviews early September.



7 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9

BUDGET

Thur 8/15

Executive Director reviews staff budget requests and revenue projections

Tues 8/20 8/15 TBD Study

Session
Discussion: Policy Manual Review (If needed)

Tues 8/20 8/15 6:15p Regular

Meeting
Presentation: Women’s Wellness Expo Report

Discussion: Community Center Funding

Consent:

Minutes: 8/6

Vouchers:

Executive Session: none

Sept 2019

Tues 9/3 8/29 TBD Study

Session
CANCELED

Tues 9/3 8/29 6:15p Regular

Meeting
CANCELED

Tues 9/17 9/12 TBD Study

Session
Discussion: 2020 Preliminary Budget Presentation

Tues 9/17 9/12 6:15p Regular

Meeting
Presentation: none

Discussion: Board Policy updates

Discussion: Peg Grant Process Update

Consent:

Minutes: 9/3

Vouchers:

Executive Session: none

Oct 2019

Tues 10/1 9/25 6:15p Study

Session
Discussion: Comprehensive Plan Review (PROS)



8 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9

Tues 10/1 9/25 7:15p Regular

Meeting
Presentation: none

Discussion:

Consent:

Minutes: 9/17

Vouchers:

Executive Session: none

Sat 10/12 Board Retreat (8 hours, time TBD)

Tues 10/15 10/9 6:15p Study

Session
Discussion: 2020 Preliminary Budget Presentation

NOTICE THIS TO NEWSPAPER

Tues 10/15 10/9 7:15p Regular

Meeting
Presentation: none

Discussion:

Consent:

Minutes: 10/8

Vouchers:

Executive Session: none

Nov 2019

Tues 11/5 10/31 TBD Study

Session
Discussion:

Tues 11/5 10/31 6:15p Regular

Meeting
Presentation: none

Discussion: 1st Public Hearing and Levy Rate approval

Consent:

Minutes: 10/22

Vouchers:

Executive Session: none

Tues 11/19 11/14 TBD Study

Session
Discussion: 2020 Preliminary Budget Presentation



9 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9

Tues 11/19 11/14 6:15p Regular

Meeting
Presentation: Interim Final Report

Discussion: 1st Public Hearing and Levy Rate approval

Consent:

Minutes: 11/5

Vouchers:

Executive Session: none

Dec 2019

Tues 12/3 11/28 TBD Study

Session
Discussion:

Tues 12/3 11/28 6:15p Regular

Meeting
Presentation: none

Discussion:

Consent:

Minutes: 11/19

Vouchers:

Executive Session: none

Tues 12/17 12/12 TBD Study

Session
Discussion: 2020 Preliminary Budget Presentation

Tues 12/17 12/12 6:15p Regular

Meeting
Presentation: none

Discussion:

Consent:

Minutes: 12/3

Vouchers:

Executive Session: none



10 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



11 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



12 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



13 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9

Explanation Financial Statement Line Items2019 July

#5112041 Legislative – Professional Services – Commissioner Iverson $1,500 Ecoquest Camp,

Commissioner Babich $2,500 Women’s Wellness Event, Commissioner Grimmer

$2,500 Women’s

Wellness Event & $400 Adult Egg Hunt, Commissioner Grimmer $2,025 Harbor

Wildwatch

#5114043 Legislative – Travel – Meeting Meals $79.77

#5114049 Legislative – Professional Services – Cedar River Group $4,629.94

#5131011 Executive – Wages – Executive Director Vacation Payout $400.78

#5131042 Executive Cell Phone - Verizon $1060.30

#5131045 Executive – Office Lease – Brown Dog - $18,723.68

#5132041 Executive – Professional Services – Demarche Consulting Group, Revenue Study, HR

Investigation, Salary Survey $74,157.00

#5761041 Executive – Professional Computer Services – Nicholas Huff Follow Up Invoices and

Pacific Office Automation, New Computer Setup $5,511.55

#5761045 Executive – Rentals – Copier Buy Out Payment $1,727.75 (Refund was received Wells

Fargo)

#5761046 Executive – Insurance – Auto Damage and Additional Property $811.00

#6103602 Executive – Computer Software – Office 365 (Timing Issue with Budget) $1,346.80

#5142341 Financial – Professional Services – ADP HR Pro Software $312.14

#5712042 Recreation Conferences– Michael Schick Revenue School & WRPA (Timing Issue)

$3,440.95

#5768031 Facilities – Supplies – PAD $295.78

#5768035 Facilities – Small Equipment – Line Lazer $3,985.57

#5768534 Maintenance – Health Department Permit $55.00

#5768540 Maintenance Snow Removal $1,069.20



14 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



15 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



16 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



17 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



18 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



19 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



20 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



21 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



22 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9

"Today We Touch Tomorrow”

DISTRICT COMMISSION MEMO

To: District Commission

From: Glenn Akramoff, Interim Executive Director

Date: August 20, 2019

Subject: Community Recreation Center Funding & Bonding Presentation

Background/Analysis

In continuing the evaluation of the Community Recreation Center, the design and permitting

elements have come before the Board, and now the funding options are here for consideration.

Through the preliminary analysis of the cost of the Community Recreation Center viewed
against the projected annual revenue stream for the District which can be allocated to capital
expenses, there are three primary options:

1. Accumulate sufficient capital funding over 10 or more years to be able to build the
project,

2. Accumulate sufficient capital funding to develop the project in phases, with final
completion extended due to inefficiencies of starting and stopping, or

3. Issue bonds to raise funding up front to build the project sooner.
Attached is a spreadsheet laying out:

 Estimated cost for the project: $24.5M
 Current (EOY 2019) capital funds of approximately $10M
 Annual capital revenue of approximately $2.6M
 Additional revenue options
 Other District capital project allocations
 Escalation of 4% per year based on current-day cost estimates

Related to the bonding option, Jim Nelson will provide a presentation addressing:

 District’s debt capacity
 Interest rate trends
 Estimated payment schedules
 Additional bonding considerations
 Prepayment options
 Bond rating grades
 Financial management policies
 Case studies

Timeline

The next steps related to the CRC Project include:

 8/21/19 – Hearing Examiner, 1:00pm, Pierce County Annex
Comment and appeal period runs 21 days from issuance of hearing decision.

 9/13/19 - Purchase decision date (currently under review)
Recommendation



23 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9

Staff requests that the Board review the materials provided and presented and provide staff

with directions on the next steps.

Policy Implications/Support

1. At the regular meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners held on July 2, 2019, the
Commission received a report on the Community Recreation Center that included a project
overview, site vetting, due diligence, permitting status and timeline, cost and financing,
decision points, and next steps.

2. The District held an Open House before the regular meeting of the Board of Park
Commissioners on July 2, 2019, to share elements of the Community Recreation Center
project with the public and receive comments.

3. At the study session before the regular meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners held on
April 22, 2019, the Commission reviewed a presentation on the design to-date, timeline and
next steps for the Community Recreation Center project.

4. At their regular meeting held on February 20, 2018, the Commission adopted Resolution
2018-004 adopting the 2018 PenMet Parks Comprehensive Park, Recreation and Open
Space Plan that identifies capital project priorities and funding options including limited tax
obligation bonds.

Should you have any questions or comments please contact me at the earliest opportunity

should additional research be required to provide answers at the meeting: 253-858-3408 or via

e-mail at GAkramoff@PenMetParks.org.

Attachments:

Cost-Revenue Spreadsheet

Capital Projects Fund Balances



24 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9

"Today We Touch Tomorrow”

DISTRICT COMMISSION MEMO

To: Peninsula Metropolitan Park District Board of Commissioners

From: Glenn Akramoff, Interim Executive Director

Date: August 20, 2019

Subject: Senior Center Memo of Understanding

Background/Analysis

As the Boys and Girls club closed in June 2019 due to the sale of the property, the Senior

Program is in jeopardy. A Task Force was formed with the regional organizations and the

seniors to address the issue and create solutions. PenMet Park District has been a part of the

conversation from the beginning and has been an active part in evaluation solutions. The

District involvement in senior programs and serving the senior population of the greater Gig

Harbor area is appropriate as per the PenMet Parks Comprehensive Plan. It was also refenced

in the levy lid lift campaign of 2018.

Recently, a Senior Program Board was formed and has come under the organizational umbrella

of the Greater Gig Harbor Foundation. That board is focused on forming as an organization and

seeking out opportunities for funding to meet the short term need to keep the program

running. This group has secured at least one temporary site in which to operate the programs.

Currently there is no secured funding or staffing to operate the program. In early April, senior

program representatives presented the program elements and needs to the Pent Board

Commissioners. They request that the PenMet Parks District consider supporting their effort to

keep the program running in the short and long term. It is also recommended that a Memo of

Understanding (MOU) be developed in partnership Greater Gig Harbor Foundation to clarify all

the partners roles and create objectives for a long-term solution.

On July 16, 2019 the Executive Director, the Chair of the Greater Gig Harbor Foundation, Judson

Morris and the Chair of the Senior Center Board Joyce Schultz, presented the draft Memo of

Understanding. Included in the presentation was a summary of the needs of the program in the

region, the funding source and timeline.

The MOU will provide the Senior Center though the Greater Gig Harbor Foundation the funding

to maintain and operations of the program and have a staff position to support the effort. The

agreement also requires monthly meeting, quarterly financial reports and the ability to jointly

market programs. The staff position will be hired and employed by the Foundation for the

Senior Center. The District will play a role in the hiring process.



25 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9

Program Funding ($10,000 in 2019 and $20,00 in 2020)

 Funding to maintain current programming

 Funding for the cost of temporary facilities
Position Funding ($15,000 in 2010 and $30,000 in 2020)

 Funding for a part-time staff position
Timeline and Funding

The Boys and Girls Club has closed and the move to a temporary site is completed. The goal is

to allow for the program to have little or no interruption of service for the those who utilize it

regularly. The funding amount will be in two areas 1) $30,000 for program operations 2)

$45,000 to fund a Senior center position to support the program. The Memo of Understanding

will be in effect through December 31, 2020. The short-term funding will come from the

PenMet general fund for 2019 and 2002.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Commission give the Interim Executive Director direction and

authority to sign the MOU agreement with the Senior Center Board and the Gig Harbor

Foundation for supporting the program.

Policy Implications/Support

1. Consider short term funding support for the remainder of 2019.
2. Consider short term staffing support funding for the remainder of 2019.
3. Consider providing short term resources toward programing for 2020.
4. Continue to be involved in the regional conversation for permanent solutions.
5. This approach would be the contribution to senior program regionally for the district at this

time.
6. The agreement encompasses the next 18 months and will be evaluated in late 2020.
Motion

I move to approve the Interim Executive Director to sign the Memo of Understating with the

Greater Gig Harbor Foundation for the Gig Harbor Senior Center to include $30,000 allocation

for operating the program and $45,000 allocation for supporting part time position in 2019 and

2020.

Staff Contact

Should you have any questions or comments please contact Glenn Akramoff at the earliest

opportunity should additional research be required to provide answers at the meeting: 253-

858-3408 or via e-mail at gakramoff@PenMetParks.org.

Attachments

1. The MOU with the Greater Gig Harbor Foundation for the Gig Harbor Senior Center.
2. The tentative job description of the part time position.
3. A summary of the programs the will be offered during the next 18 months.



26 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



27 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



28 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



29 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



30 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



31 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



32 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



33 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



34 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



35 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



36 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



37 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



38 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



39 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9



40 | P a g e A g e n d a 0 8 - 2 0 - 1 9


